w

O 0O

m

AGENDA
Wytheville Town Council
Monday, September 22, 2003
7:00 P.M.
Wytheville Municipal Building

WYTREvILLE 150 East Monroe Street

Wytheville, Virginia 24382

CALL TO ORDER—MAYOR TRENTON G. CREWE, JR.

ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM—MAYOR TRENTON G. CREWE, JR.

INVOCATION—COUNCILMAN CHARLES G. CROCKETT

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE—COUNCILMAN WILLIAM B. WEISIGER

CONSENT AGENDA

1.

2.

Minutes of the regular meeting of September 8, 2003

Request of the Wytheville Volunteer Fire Department to conduct their annual
Fire Prevention Parade on October 11, 2003

Request of the Wytheville-Wythe-Bland Chamber of Commerce to conduct
their annual Christmas parade on December 6, 2003, and to close the
municipal parking lot

Request of the Family Resource Center, Inc. for waiver of fee for use of
Withers Park for a candlelight vigil on October 16, 2003

Request of the Wythe County Breast Cancer Coalition for waiver of fee for
use of the Community Center on October 23, 2003, for an educational
session

Request of the Southwest Virginia Solid Waste Management Association for
waiver of fee for use of the Community Center on December 10, 2003, for a
meeting

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1.

Request of Mr. Sandy Etter for the rezoning of property located at 380 and
390 Peppers Ferry Road which is located on the west side of Peppers Ferry
Road between 19" Street and Loretto Drive from R-2 Residential to B-1
Business

Issuance of a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity during 2003
for Blue and White Cabs, Inc. for the operation of taxicabs



3. Application for an Enterprise Zone designation for Progress Park and
surrounding areas within the corporate limits

G. CITIZENS’ PERIOD
H. OLD BUSINESS—ASSISTANT TOWN MANAGER STEVE MOORE

COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. Budget and Finance
a. Fee levy on building permit fees imposed by the State
b. Visitor's Center inquiry under review

2. Public Works
a. Reimbursement of fees for Habitat for Humanity
b. Proposals for widening of Interstate 81

J. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS

1. An ordinance amending Ordinance No. 640, generally known as the Zoning
Ordinance, to rezone from R-2 Residential to B-1 Business with Conditions
property owned by Sandy Etter located at 380 and 390 Peppers Ferry Road,
which is located on the west side of Peppers Ferry Road between 19" Street
and Loretto Drive, on first reading

2. Resolution authorizing the Town to apply for an enterprise zone designation

K. OTHER BUSINESS

1. Issuance of a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity during 2003
for Blue and White Cabs, Inc. for the operation of taxicabs

2. Recommendation of the Planning Commission regarding the request of Mr.
David Jones for rezoning of property located at 195 North 19" Street which
is located on the west side of 19™ Street between East Spiller Street and
Peppers Ferry Road from R-2 Residential to B-1 Business with Conditions

3. Adoption of various forms required by Rural Development for the Sewer
Interceptor Project as follows:

a. Resolution of Governing Body
b. Code of Conduct

L. ADJOURNMENT

G:\COUNCIL\COUNCIL AGENDAS\2003\092203.doc



WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA INFORMATION

Meeting Date: Monday, September 22, 2003

Item Name: Consent Agenda

Item Number: E-2

Subject: Fire Prevention Parade
SUMMARY:

Enclosed is a request of the Wytheville Volunteer Fire Department for permission to
conduct the annual fire prevention parade on Saturday, October 11, 2003, at 7:00 PM.
The route is the same as in prior years and the Town anticipates no problems with

approving the request.



WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA INFORMATION

Meeting Date: Monday, September 22, 2003

Item Name: Consent Agenda

Item Number: E-3

Subject: Christmas Parade
SUMMARY:

Enclosed is a request of the Wytheville-Wythe-Bland Chamber of Commerce for
permission to conduct the annual Christmas parade on Saturday, December 6, 2003, at
5:00 PM. The route is the same as in previous years. The Chamber would also request
that the Town Municipal parking lot be closed for float parking. The Town anticipates no

problems with approving the request.



WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA INFORMATION

Meeting Date: Monday, September 22, 2003

Item Name: Consent Agenda

Item Number: E-4

Subject: Waiver of Fee—Family Resource Center
SUMMARY:

Enclosed is a request of the Family Resource Center for waiver of fee for use of Withers
Park for a candlelight vigil on October 16, 2003. The Center conforms to the criteria for

waiver of fee, and Director of Recreation Showalter has, likewise, approved the request.



WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA INFORMATION

Meeting Date: Monday, September 22, 2003
Item Name: Public Hearing
Item Number: F-1
Subject: Etter Rezoning
SUMMARY:

A public hearing has been scheduled to consider a request of Mr. Sandy Etter for the
rezoning of property located at 380 and 390 Peppers Ferry Road which is located on
the west side of Peppers Ferry Road between 19" Street and Loretto Drive from R-2
Residential to B-1 Business. The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on
this matter and recommended that the property be rezoned to B-1 Business with
Conditions. Enclosed are the Planning Commission’s recommendation, staff report, and
application. Also, enclosed is a letter from Ms. Clara G. Crigger expressing her
opposition to the proposed rezoning. Action on this matter will be during the regular

meeting by way of an ordinance.



WYTHEVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION
RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL

Request:

Request of Mr. Sandy Etter for the rezoning of property located at 380 and 390 Peppers
Ferry Road which is located on the west side of Peppers Ferry Road between 19"
Street and Loretto Drive from R-2 Residential to B-1 Business.

Recommendation to Town Council:

The Planning Commission would recommend that the Town Council approve the
request of Mr. Sandy Etter for the rezoning of property located at 380 and 390 Peppers
Ferry Road which is located on the west side of Peppers Ferry Road between 19"
Street and Loretto Drive from R-2 Residential to B-1 Business with Conditions that will
include the following conditions:

1. Restrict the development to banks, office buildings, bed and breakfast inns, light
retail establishments, pick up laundry and dry cleaning, and wearing apparels
stores.

2. Potential to review the rezoning again in 3-5 years relative to the lifting of the

conditions and the extension of the district further north.

G:\PLANCOMM\Recommendations\etter rezoning recommendation to council.doc



SANDY ETTER
REZONING REQUEST

Staff Report

Consideration of the request to rezone property located at 380 and 390 Peppers Ferry Road
from R-2 Residential to B-1 Business.

Background

The property is presently zoned R-2 Residential. It is bounded to the south by B-1 Business, to the
north by R-2 Residential, to the east (across Peppers Ferry Road) by M-1 Industrial, and to the west
by a combination of R-2 Residential and B-1 Business zones split by a diagonal line. The Future
Land Use Map shows this property as “Business” use extending back to Spiller Street. The
properties to the west and north have been developed as residential property and contain single
family residences. Across Peppers Ferry Road is a wooded grove that is undeveloped industrial
property--part of the ALCO facility.

Considerations

Mr. Etter has indicated that he would like to rezone the property because he feels that a rezoning
would create a logical extension of the B-1 Business zone along Peppers Ferry Road, and it would
increase the flexibility of his options for the property. He indicated that he would be able to continue
to utilize the residences, and have the option to convert the property to business use. As a result of
the notices to adjacent property owners regarding this rezoning, Mr. David W. Jones who owns the
property to the northwest (195 North 19" Street) came to discuss the rezoning with staff. Mr. Jones
ultimately requested by letter that his property also be included in the area to be rezoned. Please
see attached letter.

Article IV addresses the general intent of the zoning districts and indicates the intent of the B-1
Business Zoning District is to “permit the establishment of a business district that will permit
businesses which are not likely to cause traffic or parking congestion, smoke or noise which would
be injurious to the surrounding residential district. It is intended that this limited business district will
protect residences in the district from incompatible types of businesses and that this protection
should be afforded during the transition of the area from residential use to business use. It is
intended also that the district will permit activities normally considered necessary to a neighborhood
business development. The minimum area of such district will normally be one block.”

The B-1 Business zone permits residential uses such as single and multiple family dwellings,
rooming and boarding houses, bed and breakfast inns, and rest homes. It permits businesses such
as retail stores, grocery stores, bake shops, drug stores, medical and dental supply stores, auto
and home appliance stores, wearing apparel stores, pick up laundry and dry cleaning, laundromats,



barber and beauty shops, banks, restaurants, theatres, office buildings, motels and hotels,
assembly halls, newsstands, commercial greenhouses, and lumber, building, plumbing and
electrical supply with storage under cover.

The B-1 Business District to the south (the Loretto property) has spawned a very attractive business
district with professional offices and a bank. It would be logical to think that an extension of this B-1
Business District would continue that trend, but a B-1 Business District does allow more intense
business uses such as a commercial greenhouse or a fast food restaurant.

The nationwide trend of increasing numbers of cars and trucks on the road has been reflected in
Woytheville with increased traffic counts on almost all streets, especially on the arterial streets. This
has led some residential property owners to feel that locations on arterial streets are undesirable
and that the best use for these properties is business or a related use. This also reflects, we think, a
trend to decrease the desirability of residential properties that border on streets with heavy traffic.
We suspect that requests for rezoning of residential properties will continue as Wytheville continues
to grow.

Staff feels that the logical extension of business zones is a natural development of any growing
community. The goal is to be sure that the extension is one which will not provide a glut of business
property and that will confirm that there is an appropriate amount of residential property
development. The amount of residential property development has continued to grow with low
interest rates--the concern is whether or not this development is serving the entire population. Most
of the recent development has been in single family development, not in the multi-family
development (R-2 Residential and R-3 Residential)—the development that has been identified as
needed in the comprehensive plan.

Staff feels that the proposed rezoning is a logical extension of the B-1 Business Zone, and that the
proposal of Mr. Jones that his land be included is a logical one. Staff feels that it is inevitable that
this property will ultimately be rezoned as business, and once that is done, there will be pressure to
continue the extension further north along Peppers Ferry Road. This rezoning may be merely a
matter of timing. The danger is that any future development may be less desirable than the present
business development--a fast food restaurant, or building supply business--businesses that would
not necessarily have the attractive traditional brick buildings with manicured lawns and paved
parking lots that have been developed in this neighborhood to date.

Staff Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission carefully discuss this issue and that the Jones
property be considered in the rezoning. Staff feels that if there is no opposition from the
neighborhood that the rezoning could be approved, but staff would recommend that consideration
be given to rezoning with conditions so that future development would more closely reflect the
businesses that have developed to date. Staff feels that to restrict the development to banks, office
buildings, bed and breakfast inns, light retail establishments, pick up laundry and dry cleaning, and
wearing apparel stores would be advisable for the present with the potential to review the rezoning
again in 3-5 years relative to the lifting of the conditions and the extension of the district further
north.

G:\PLANCOMM\Staff Reports\staff report etter rezoning.doc



WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA INFORMATION

Meeting Date: Monday, September 22, 2003

Item Name: Committee Reports

Item Number: -2

Subject: Public Works Committee Report
SUMMARY:

The Public Works Committee will report on the following matters:
a. Reimbursement of fees for Habitat for Humanity

b. Proposals for widening of Interstate 81



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT

SEPTEMBER 22, 2003

Recently, we received a request from Reverend Steve Ridenhour with Habitat for
Humanity requesting that fees associated with construction of their latest dwelling on
Spring Street be reimbursed. The fees that were requested to be reimbursed include
$1,660 for water and sewer connections and $210.08 for the building, mechanical,
plumbing, and electrical permits. The two fees combined total $1,870.08. Habitat
has paid these fees, but would seek their reimbursement. We have assisted Habitat
before with other projects and think that their efforts are worthwhile and feel that the
reimbursement of these fees is warranted. Therefore, it is the recommendation of
the Public Works Committee that the Treasurer be authorized to issue a check in the
sum of $1,870.08 to Habitat for Humanity for reimbursement of expenses associated

with the Spring Street housing project.

We have received, this past week, information from both private companies that
have submitted proposals to the Virginia Department of Transportation for the
widening of Interstate 81 through Virginia. At this point, our Committee has not had
the opportunity to review these proposals, but will be doing so in some detail in order
that we can provide comments to the Department of Transportation. The
Department of Transportation will hold its annual reallocation hearings in October, at
which time we can make comments on the need for local street improvements, and

also have the opportunity to comment on the interstate proposals. The interstate



highways are critical to the Town’s economy, and we think it is important to
understand both proposals fully and attempt to have the alternatives selected that
will best serve our citizens and our business community. We would anticipate that
we would have some type of preliminary statement developed by the next meeting

of Council.

William B. Weisiger

Charles G. Crockett

H:\COUNCIL\PWCOMMIT.RPT\2003\PWSEP22.doc



WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA INFORMATION

Meeting Date: Monday, September 22, 2003

Item Name: Ordinances/Resolutions

Item Number: J-1

Subject: Sandy Etter rezoning
SUMMARY:

Enclosed is an ordinance, which would provide for the rezoning of property at 380 and
390 Peppers Ferry Road from R-2 Residential to B-1 Business with Conditions. The
ordinance is being considered on first reading. The Council can approve the rezoning,
deny the rezoning, or take no action on the ordinance, which would result in the

property remaining R-2 Residential.



ORDINANCE NO.
At a regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Wytheville, Virginia, held in
the Council Chambers on Monday, September 22, 2003, at 7:00 P.M.

Present:

Absent:

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 640, GENERALLY KNOWN
AS THE ZONING ORDINANCE, TO REZONE FROM R-2 RESIDENTIAL
TO B-1 BUSINESS WITH CONDITIONS PROPERTY OWNED
BY SANDY ETTER LOCATED AT 380 AND 390 PEPPERS FERRY
ROAD, WHICH IS LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF PEPPERS
FERRY ROAD BETWEEN 19™ STREET AND LORETTO DRIVE

WHEREAS, this matter was referred by the Council to the Planning Commission for
a report and recommendation; and,

WHEREAS, notice by publication in the Wytheville Enterprise, a newspaper

published in Wytheville, Virginia, was duly given on July 26 and August 2, that on the 14th
day of August, 2003, at 7:00 P.M. the Planning Commission of the Town of Wytheville
would hold a public hearing concerning the matter covered by this ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, said public hearing was duly held by the Planning Commission and
thereafter recommended that the Town Council amend Ordinance No. 640 to rezone said
area from R-2 Residential to B-1 Business with Conditions; and,

WHEREAS, notice by publication in the Wytheville Enterprise, a newspaper

published in Wytheville, Virginia, was duly given on September 6 and September 13, 2003,
that on the 22nd day of September, 2003, at 7:00 P.M. the Town Council of the Town of
Wytheville would hold a public hearing concerning the matter covered by this ordinance;
and,

WHEREAS, said public hearing was duly held by the Town Council and thereafter
recommended that Ordinance No. 640 of the Town of Wytheville, being known as the
Zoning Ordinance, be amended as hereinafter set out.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that Ordinance No. 640, generally known as
the Zoning Ordinance, be amended so as to rezone from R-2 Residential to B-1 Business
with Conditions property owned by Sandy Etter located at 380 and 390 Peppers Ferry
Road, which is located on the west side of Peppers Ferry Road between 19" Street and

Loretto Drive, as indicated on the attached plat.



BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this property described heretofore be rezoned

with the following conditions:

1. Restrict the development to banks, office buildings, bed and breakfast inns,

light retail establishments, pick up laundry and dry cleaning, and wearing

apparel stores.

2. Potential to review the rezoning again in 3-5 years relative to the lifting of the

conditions and the extension of the district further north.

H:\ORDINANC\Etter Rezoning.doc



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2003, AT 7:00 P.M.

Members present: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B.
Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett

Members absent: None

Others present: Town Manager C. Wayne Sutherland, Jr., Assistant Town Manager
Stephen A. Moore, Town Clerk Sharon P. Hackler, Patrol Officer Chad
Eversole, Theresa Hart with Wytheville Enterprise, Ed Zuber, Reta Jones,
Carter Beamer, Betty Campbell, Louise Crockett, Brenda Jenkins, James
A. Brown, Tommy Hundley, Ray V. Parks

RE: CALL TO ORDER, QUORUM, INVOCATION, PLEDGE

Mayor Crewe called the meeting to order and established that a quorum of Council members
was present. The invocation was given by Councilman Jones followed by the Pledge of
Allegiance led by Vice-Mayor King.

RE: CONSENT AGENDA

Mayor Crewe presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of
August 25, 2003, the request of the Virginia Cooperative Extension for waiver of fee for use of
the Bingo Room for their annual banquet on December 1, 2003, the request of the Virginia
Cooperative Extension for waiver of fee for use of the Bingo Room and Room 4 for their
pesticide recertification on December 18, 2003, and the request of the Wythe County 4-H for
waiver of fee for use of the Elizabeth Brown Memorial Park for their 4-H Awards on September
21, 2003. A motion was made by Councilman Weisiger and seconded by Vice-Mayor King to
approve the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of August 25,
2003, the request of the Virginia Cooperative Extension for waiver of fee for use of the Bingo
Room for their annual banquet on December 1, 2003, the request of the Virginia Cooperative
Extension for waiver of fee for use of the Bingo Room and Room 4 for their pesticide
recertification on December 18, 2003, and the request of the Wythe County 4-H for waiver of fee
for use of the Elizabeth Brown Memorial Park for their 4-H Awards on September 21, 2003.
Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion
was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G.
Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett.
Against: None.

RE: CITIZENS’ PERIOD

Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is Citizens’ Period. He noted that several individuals
have indicated that they desire to address the Town Council.

Mr. Ed Zuber was recognized and stated that St. Mary’s Church is having its annual fall festival
on Saturday, October 4, and, again, as in the past, the church is asking the Town Council for
permission to close 5" Street between Monroe and Main Streets from approximately 7:00 a.m.
to 4:00 p.m. He noted that the closing of the street provides the church with an opportunity to
hold its festival without having to worry about being run over by vehicles. Vice-Mayor King
remarked that she believes in the past, the Council has stated that all the church representative
had to do is go to the Police Department to pick up the traffic cones and set them out. Mayor
Crewe noted that he believes there was a sawhorse and some type of barrier if he remembers
correctly. He stated that the Council has two options, and noted the Committee can review the
request. Mayor Crewe pointed out that the Council has closed the street in the past, and if they
do not think there is a need for the Committee to review it, the Council can proceed to approve it
at this meeting. It was the consensus of the Council to approve the request of St. Mary’s
Catholic Church to close 5™ Street between Monroe and Main Streets on Saturday, October 4,
from 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. for the church’s annual fall festival. Mayor Crewe advised that the
Council will ask Town staff to coordinate with Mr. Zuber, or someone else that Mr. Zuber
advises the Town to contact, regarding this matter to work out the details to close the street. Mr.
Zuber remarked that they will put the cones on the corner of the street after the festival is over
as they have done in the past. He noted he will ensure that the church returns the same number
of cones as they received. Vice-Mayor King stated she believes that in the past, all the church
representative had to do was go to the Police Department and pick up the cones and then
return them. Mayor Crewe noted that he believes this is correct. Mr. Zuber inquired as to where
they should pick up the cones. Vice-Mayor King advised that the cones should be picked up
from the Police Department. Town Manager Sutherland interjected that the Town will call Mr.



Zuber because Town staff may have delivered them in the past, or the church may have picked
the cones up and the Town collected them, but advised he could not recall which one. Mr. Zuber
stated he will contact the Town before the festival, and he thanked the Council for approving the
street closing. Mayor Crewe thanked Mr. Zuber for attending the meeting.

Ms. Reta Jones was recognized and noted that she would defer to Mr. Carter Beamer.

Mr. Carter Beamer was recognized and stated it is nice to be attending the meeting with many
of the Council members that he has known for a long time, and noted he has worked with some
of them in various enterprises. He remarked that he is attending the meeting with a small group
of individuals from their neighborhood who is concerned about the visitor's center being
developed on North Tazewell Street at the top of the hill. Mr. Beamer stated that all of them own
property in the immediate area, and, generally, he thinks that all of the neighbors have the same
concern. He noted that some of the other neighbors will also have something to state, and
advised that their comments will be different than his. Mr. Beamer indicated that as he thinks the
Council knows, the project is being developed in what is now an R-2 Residential zone. He noted
that this neighborhood has been zoned R-2 Residential for some 50 years, and so far as he
knows, there is no move or proposal to change this zoning. Mr. Beamer advised that when the
neighborhood received a letter almost a year ago advising of the proposed use of the Rider
property for a visitor’'s center, he assumed, as he believes many others did, that it would be in
the old Rider dwelling, it would continue to look much the same, and that there would be a small
parking area to accommodate a dozen or so cars, probably at the end of the present driveway.
He noted that this did not disturb them too much, so they did not gather to come before the
Town Council. Mr. Beamer remarked that unexpectedly a couple of months ago, the
neighborhood found a new building going up where he thought there would be a parking area.
He explained that the new center will be in this new building rather than in the Rider dwelling.
Mr. Beamer pointed out that a further surprise, just in the past week or possibly ten days, the
neighborhood understood, and noted that most of their information comes by the neighborhood
grapevine, that the front yard area is to be developed as a parking lot. He indicated that there
has been some surveying on the property, presumably in preparation for a parking lot. Mr.
Beamer stated that the neighborhood understood that the lot would be for 100 vehicles. He
noted he has been told by Councilman Jones that this may be just for 50 vehicles. Mr. Beamer
remarked that essentially, the neighborhood’s complaint is the same. He noted that thinking
back to what he recalls of areas required for parking, an acre of land would be required for 100
vehicles, and probably more land would be required because of the slope and the need for
having more than one level of parking. Mr. Beamer explained that also, additional land would
probably be required for a detention basin to catch storm water runoff. He noted that even if
there are only 50 cars, there will probably be the use of a better part of an acre. Mr. Beamer
indicated that the parking lot would use up the present front yard substantially, even for 50 cars.
He advised that the neighborhood had thought the front yard would remain a lawn. Mr. Beamer
stated that they now have the prospect of looking at a fairly large parking lot which they think will
look commercial even if it may not be considered that way. He noted the neighborhood does not
think this would be in keeping with the residential appearance of the property as had been
anticipated. Mr. Beamer advised that the neighborhood now asks the Council to take a careful
look at the entire situation keeping in mind the R-2 Residential zoning which is applicable. He
noted there are several things the Council might review and consider. Mr. Beamer advised that
personally, he thinks the visitor's center would be better situated if it were in one of the shopping
centers near the interstate highways. He stated that the visitor's center could perhaps be in the
Evansham Shopping Center where there are under utilized buildings, or it could be in one of the
centers on the east end of town where there are many empty buildings and acres of parking all
in place. Mr. Beamer noted if the plans cannot be changed and there can be no change in the
location, then some parking on the property could be developed which would be less visible and
conspicuous. He advised that this parking could be in the area where the old barn is situated
and to the rear of the buildings. Mr. Beamer noted that for this same location, the Town should
try, he thinks, to have access from Fourth Street. Mr. Beamer indicated that a right of way would
need to be acquired next to Arby’s across the Harkrader property. He noted this is the property
between what the Town owns and Fourth Street. Mr. Beamer explained that the entire
Harkrader property might be acquired at a relatively modest cost, and noted it has been on the
market for many years. He noted that also, access, if any, to and from Tazewell Street ought to
be limited due to narrowness of the street. Mr. Beamer pointed out that Tazewell Street has a
20-foot pavement and about a 40-foot right of way. He noted there is a problem of the lack of
sight distance at the top of the hill, and advised that all of the Council members are probably
familiar with this. Mr. Beamer stated that as a practical matter, it would be difficult, indeed, to
improve on the street in this situation. He advised that in summary, and in the general sense,
the neighborhood is requesting the Town Council to protect the residential character of their
neighborhood and not do anything which will do injury to the value of their properties. Mr.
Beamer thanked the Council for listening to his comments. Mayor Crewe thanked Mr. Beamer
for his comments and for attending the meeting.



Mayor Crewe recognized Ms. Reta Jones and inquired if when she deferred to Mr. Beamer if
she wanted to add to his comments. He noted that the Council will be glad to hear from her.

Ms. Reta Jones noted that as the neighbor that is closest to the property, she would like to know
some answers as to what the proposals are and how it is going to affect her property. She
remarked that she noticed a lot of trees have been cut, and the visual barriers that had been
there are no longer there. Ms. Jones indicated that she did not know how this is going to affect
her property. Mayor Crewe thanked Ms. Jones for her comments and inquired if the
neighborhood has seen the plans or have looked at the diagrams and the information the Town
has. Ms. Jones advised that she has not had a chance to view the diagrams. Mayor Crewe
indicated that Assistant Town Manager Moore can probably explain this better than anyone. He
inquired if Assistant Town Manager Moore could explain the diagram. Mayor Crewe noted that
the Town will be glad to share the information with anyone at a later time, at this meeting, etc.
He then presented a rough site plan. Ms. Jones indicated that Mr. Tommy Hundley lives next
door to her, and he is also affected by this. She advised that they have talked to Assistant Town
Manager Moore, but they have not had a chance to see what the Town is going to be doing.
Assistant Town Manager Moore depicted on the map where the Rider house, the Jones house,
and the Hundley house are located. He invited those attending the meeting to view the map. Mr.
Moore explained that the Rider House is planned to be utilized as part of the visitor’s center, but
there is an addition to the Rider House that will be very similar in its appearance, and noted that
the addition is almost a mirror of the existing Rider House. He explained that this addition will be
situated adjacent to the Rider House where everyone presently sees the sheeting board on the
face of the building. Mr. Moore advised that this look will change dramatically over the next
couple of weeks as the addition is developed, and it will look very similar to the Rider House. He
explained there will be a porch on the addition that will be very similar to the present home. Mr.
Moore stated the driveway will be offset slightly so there is not a visibility problem at the high
point so when people enter and exit, they will be able to see up and down the street. He noted
the driveway will be offset a few feet toward the north and will continue around in front of the
Rider House and will exit back around to the street. Ms. Jenkins inquired if the driveway would
be next door to her. Mr. Moore stated that is correct. Mr. Moore stated the trees everyone has
seen will be left in place for the most part. He explained there were one or two trees taken out,
and he depicted on the map the location of the trees that were removed and the trees that will
be left to continue to grow. Assistant Town Manager Moore pointed out that trees will be planted
along the face of the street as well as other areas, and he illustrated on the map the location
where the trees would be planted. He stated the parking lot would contain 49 parking spaces
and noted on the map where the parking lot would be located. Mr. Moore explained that the
parking area may not be developed to the full 49 spaces, and it may be initially developed for 25
spaces and it could be extended if there is a need for it. He noted the Town does not anticipate
that there will be more than 12 cars at one time at this center. Mr. Moore reiterated that there is
the potential to extend this parking lot to 49 spaces total. He remarked that to the left is a
parking area for RV’s to pull in and go to the visitor's center, and noted it is slightly larger. Mr.
Moore stated that this parking lot is probably 50 or 60 feet from the adjoining property line. He
explained that these will be gravel parking areas and there will also be a paved parking lot. It
was noted that there was a concern regarding the RV’s and how they would be able to get
around the one corner. Mr. Moore stated there is the potential to improve the curve at the
crossing. Mr. Beamer indicated that it could be virtually impossible for buses or large motor
homes to negotiate those turns off of Tazewell Street in and out. He stated he thinks the parking
is still in the wrong place, and it should not be out in front of the building. Assistant Town
Manager Moore stated he apologizes for this and noted that the Town had this plan available
last year when the letter was sent inviting everyone to come by and view it. He remarked that
this design is what is presently being planned for. Mr. Hundley stated his general concern is
how this is going to affect everyone’s property values with the potential for some type of store
with the small buildings on the corner. He noted there has also been some talk of an
amphitheater at one point in time. Mr. Hundley indicated that he did not know if these items are
still in the plans. Mr. Moore explained that these items were aspects of the total project of the
Jackson property, but they are not particular aspects of the Rider House property. He noted that
this will be a visitor's center where people can stop to pick up brochures and obtain information
about the area and purchase tickets. Ms. Jones inquired as to how the two properties would be
tied together. Mayor Crewe inquired if Ms. Jones is inquiring how the two properties would be
physically tied together or just by being close to each other with a path and not a parking lot
down to the Jackson property. Ms. Jones inquired as to how close this would be to her house.
Mr. Beamer pointed out that a graveled parking lot will be worse than a paved parking lot
because it will grow up with weeds, grass, and all kinds of debris. Mr. Moore indicated that
Town staff can review installing paved parking lots. He noted the development of this property is
not his decision and he is merely explaining the plans. Mayor Crewe stated that all of the issues
that everyone has raised have been discussed by the Council. He noted the Council is trying to
address these issues, and he does not think the neighborhood residents have stated anything



that the Council has not talked about and has not been discussing for more than a year. Mr.
Beamer inquired if the Council has talked about placing the visitor's center elsewhere. Mayor
Crewe stated the Council has discussed placing the visitor's center elsewhere, and the other
options did not work. He noted for one thing, the Town does not own any other property that
would work. Mayor Crewe indicated that if everyone is not aware, there is a partner in this which
is the Forest Service. He noted that the Forest Service will be offering staffing for this visitor’s
center. Mayor Crewe explained that the Forest Service is in the process of relocating their
visitor’'s center, and they have manpower available, so the Town partnered with them to utilize
some of their staffing, and this is what is in this for the Forest Service. Mr. Beamer inquired if the
Forest Service would be interested in a place with better access. Mayor Crewe stated the Forest
Service is not interested in another place, and noted that as a matter of fact, this is the best
access. He explained that this site works for lots of things the Town is trying to do. Mayor Crewe
pointed out that the Forest Service is leaving the shopping center because of the access
problems. He stated this flies directly in the face of what he thought and what Mr. Beamer’s
comment just stated in that a shopping center would be better. Mayor Crewe noted that the
Forest Service does not like the shopping center. He explained that is a significant part, but not
the only part, of the Town trying to develop its tourism efforts. Mayor Crewe noted that with
some of the State’s efforts, some of the historical trails, the Civil War park, and the Civil War
Trails, this ties into a bigger picture as well, and this is also part of the location. He stated he
can understand the neighbors’ fears, and noted they are not hearing anything at this meeting
that has not been available for at least a year or maybe longer than a year. Mayor Crewe
apologized to the neighbors that they did not know this before this meeting, but the Town tried
to make it available and let the neighbors know what the Town was doing. He noted the
comment about the gravel driveway may turn out to be true, but the Town certainly thinks it will
not happen. Mr. Beamer inquired as to how the Town let anyone know what was going on other
than by a simple letter. Mayor Crewe noted that the Town has held several public hearings,
there have been several agenda items, and the Town sent the neighbors a letter because they
were adjoining property owners. He advised that the Council has discussed this in several
meetings, and it has been a topic for more than a year. Mr. Beamer noted he has not been
aware of this. Mayor Crewe stated he does not know how to tell the citizens what is on the
agenda other than the fact that the agendas are available all of the time, and it is available on
the web page. Mayor Crewe advised that he understands why people did not pay a lot of
attention to it, and he understands their point. He noted that the Town will try to work with the
neighbors any way they can, but, as they can see, the Town has progressed rather far on the
project. Mr. Beamer noted that on the location, he would strongly suggest that there should be
an access off of Fourth Street. Mayor Crewe indicated that this is something the Council has
talked about and reviewed, and this access is not possible at the present, but the Council is
reviewing this and trying to see what can be done. Mr. Beamer inquired as to why this access is
not possible at the present time. Mayor Crewe explained that the Town does not own the right of
way, and there is not a right of way available at the moment. Mr. Beamer inquired if anyone has
tried to see about obtaining a right of way. Mayor Crewe stated that the Town has tried to see
about obtaining a right of way. He noted that the Town has been in some discussions with the
Harkrader family. Mr. Beamer advised that the Harkrader family does not own the land and
inquired as to who the Town talked to. Mayor Crewe stated the Town talked to whoever the
representative was, but advised he does not recall who it was. He pointed out that it has been
quite a while ago, and the Town reviewed this, and it did not work out. Mayor Crewe indicated
that the Town has not given up on trying to obtain a right of way, but it was not available at a
price the Town could afford. Mr. Beamer indicated that the Crowgey-Bowen Realty company
had it at one time, and he understood that the Crowgeys had purchased the property, but this
may not be correct. Mayor Crewe indicated that if this has taken place, it has been since the
Town looked at obtaining the property. He noted this may now be true, but not during the
situation the Town had at that time. Mayor Crewe stated there are also access problems of
entering on Fourth Street because it is a State highway, and there are some concerns with this
as well as what can or cannot be done. Mr. Beamer indicated that there is no concern at that
location to his knowledge. Mayor Crewe remarked that there is concern, and noted, for
example, there is a 300 foot limit on an interstate exit that the Town has to take into
consideration depending on where the access comes out. He noted the Town is tying this with
the Jackson property, and one access to Fourth Street would be handy for the entire farm. Mr.
Beamer indicated it is far more than 300 feet to this property. Mayor Crewe stated that to the
back of Arby’s, it is more than 300 feet, but there is also the retaining wall problem at Arby’s and
the topographical difference that it is higher because Fourth Street is lower than most of the
Rider property, and there is the downhill grade, etc. that has to be taken into account. He noted
he is not stating that any of these problems are insurmountable problems, but he is stating that
the Council has reviewed some of these issues and thought that they had come up with what
they thought was a workable solution, and noted he can understand that the neighbors are
concerned about it. Mayor Crewe remarked that the Town can try to keep the neighbors
apprised of the matter and keep them informed of what the Town is doing, but what the citizens
are seeing is what the Council has approved, voted on, and sought funding for. He indicated



that the Council can, and will, continue to reevaluate this matter. Mayor Crewe noted he thinks
he is speaking for the Council, but if he is not, he would request someone on the Council to
speak up and state they disagree. Mr. Beamer advised that he thinks it is essential that the
parking be moved and it should be arranged behind the building or over in the area where the
barn is located. He noted if the parking is to be on this site, it should not be in front of the
building. Mayor Crewe stated if the Council tied this into the Jackson property, this may not be
the front, but this may become the back or the side of the building. He noted it would be the
longer side of the building obviously, but if they review the diagram, what the Town is basically
doing is building around the Rider House. Mr. Beamer inquired as to what Mayor Crewe means
if the Town ties this into the Jackson property. Mayor Crewe answered that he is referring to the
farm place, etc. He explained that the vision is that people would be buying tickets at the
visitor’s center to go tour the Jackson Homestead. Mr. Beamer stated that Mayor Crewe is not
talking about vehicular traffic and inquired if that is correct. Mayor Crewe noted there would not
be vehicular access to the Jackson Homestead. He explained that visitors would park at the
Rider property and walk to the Jackson property. Mayor Crewe indicated that this is the way the
Town has it configured at the moment, and this is the way they think it works best. He noted if
any of the Council members have questions, to please feel free to express them. Councilman
Crockett stated he would like to find out from Assistant Town Manager Moore and have him
refresh his memory a little regarding when the Council talked about the set up of 49 parking
spaces, but advised that the Town can probably function with 25 parking spaces. He inquired if
the Forestry Service dictated the number of parking spaces or is there something in the Town
Code that dictates that there has to be a certain number of parking spaces. Assistant Town
Manager Moore advised that what Town staff tried to do, given the topography and what was
available, was to design the maximum number of spaces they felt they could get in this
particular location and this is what the Council sees before them at this time. He explained that
the Forestry Service did not give the Town a specific number of spaces they required. Mayor
Crewe stated the other part of this is that the Town was not planning to develop the entire
number of parking spaces to start with, and the Town was going to develop them in stages to
see what was needed because Town staff did not feel they would need 49 spaces at the
beginning. Assistant Town Manager Moore noted that viewing the map, there is a tremendous
amount of Rider property to the right side, which does not solve the Jones’ problem, but it could
be available for parking should the Town decide to move it from the front yard to the side yard.
He stated these are options that Town staff did not explore previously for the reasons that have
been mentioned. Mr. Moore indicated that this is something the Town could review. Mr. Hundley
inquired regarding the handicap accessibility and if this would also be by way of a trail. Mayor
Crewe indicated if Mr. Hundley is referring to taking the trail down to the Jackson property, and
noted that is correct and it will be one of two ways, depending on the handicap. He noted that
taking the trail is one of the things that is possible, but there will also be a virtual tour where
visitors could stay in the visitor’s center and see the multimedia presentation and take a tour of
the Jackson property without physically being on the property. Mr. Hundley advised he thinks he
and the Jones have kind of a different outlook on what is happening. He noted they are affected
because they are on the same side of the street as the visitor’'s center. Mr. Hundley pointed out
that the property owners across the street are going to have different issues than they because
they feel they are being forced out in some ways, and if they are wrong, to please let them
know. He advised this does feel as though this is what is happening. Mayor Crewe noted he
does not know how to address what Mr. Hundley and the Jones are feeling. He indicated he
does not know how Mr. Hundley and the Jones can feel they have been forced out when the
Council has been trying to tell them for a year what they are doing, and the Town is not
withholding any of the information. Mayor Crewe stated that the Town is not trying to force the
Jones or Mr. Hundley to do anything, and noted this is a short answer, but it is probably not
satisfactory to them. Mr. Hundley remarked that what he is trying to state is do they need to try
and sell their properties now or later. He inquired if the Town is going to come and ask for their
properties at some point. Mr. Hundley explained that he has heard different views from different
people, and to protect themselves, this is what they are looking at. He advised that he and the
Jones want to help the Town as much as possible, too, but they have general concerns about
their own property. Mayor Crewe indicated he does not know how to answer those concerns
other than to tell him that there have been some pieces of property through this area that have
been for sale that the Town had some negotiations with early on, and he does not think there is
anything presently ongoing. He noted he does not think anything the Town is doing is going to
detract from their property values or run them out of the neighborhood, and advised he did not
see this at all. Mayor Crewe indicated that the Town has never done this, but what the Town is
constructing is an upscale, nice facility. He noted that whether it is desirable or not to live next to
the visitor's center, the Town and the neighbors can differ on that, but the Town is not trying to
make Mr. Hundley or the Jones sell their property or depress their property values or anything of
the kind. Mr. Hundley inquired if they can ask a few things, and if there is some way that the
citizens can be contacted directly by a letter, a phone call, etc. when something is going to be
addressed by the Council. Mayor Crewe noted he thinks the easiest answer to this is to have
Mr. Hundley add his name to the Town’s mailing list, and for every meeting the Council has, he



will receive a packet and the agenda items. He stated this packet is also always available on the
web page, so it can be checked electronically. Mayor Crewe noted that the Council minutes can
also be read on the web page. He stated this is probably the most foolproof method. Mayor
Crewe indicated that Town staff can try and do their best to call or write Mr. Hundley when
something is going to be discussed regarding this matter. Mr. Hundley advised that at the next
meeting, he does not want this to be addressed that the neighbors have not taken any thought
to this because they have, but they have been waiting to see what is going to happen. He noted
that, again, they want to protect themselves and their properties because he and the Jones
have worked hard to try to keep their properties up. Mr. Hundley stated if the Council were in the
same situation, they would probably feel the same. Mayor Crewe indicated that he understands
their concerns, and the Council will try to do what they can to keep the neighbors informed. He
noted that the property owners also need to make a little effort on their part to make sure that
they keep abreast of what the Town is doing. Mr. Hundley stated he agreed, and inquired with
the Jackson aspect of this if there has been any further thought as to what is going to happen
with that property. He advised that this is the property that is going to directly affect his property.
Mayor Crewe remarked that the Town has been in negotiations over the Jackson property for
over five or six years. Mr. Hundley stated the last conversation he had with Mr. Jackson, he
stated that as new people come in, it continues to evolve with new ideas, new thoughts, what is
going to happen with the property, etc. He noted that, again, he would like to get more of a feel
as to what is going to happen with the property. Mr. Hundley stated if the changes are going to
make the Jackson property nicer, that is fine and great. Mayor Crewe explained that the
Jacksons have a life estate on their property, and they are in 100 percent control of the
property, at least for the time being. He noted that the ownership is vested and structured such
that there is a board that controls and makes the plans and comes up with suggestions as to
what to do. He noted this must be where Mr. Jackson is stating that people come and go. Mayor
Crewe stated that the Town made one appointment to that board that changed in the last one
and one-half years. He remarked that there is a Homestead Foundation Board that is
responsible for the day-to-day operations. Mayor Crewe advised that there is nothing to operate
yet because the Jacksons still have the property at the present time. He explained that the
Jacksons, he supposed, could do something different with the property during their ownership,
but, ultimately, it will become Town ownership. Mr. Hundley stated that is acceptable and
inquired as to who he should see regarding the Council package to ensure that he receives it.
Mayor Crewe noted that he should see Town Clerk Hackler to ensure that the Town has Mr.
Hundley’s name and address so they can put his name on the mailing list and can send him the
Council package. Mayor Crewe thanked Mr. Hundley for his comments. Councilman Crockett
stated he has another question for Assistant Town Manager Moore and noted that possibly
Town Manager Sutherland could also comment on this. He explained he was under the
impression when the Council talked about the access to Fourth Street, because he brought it up
once or twice also, that the grade was such that it was not practical to get access off of Fourth
Street. Town Manager Sutherland stated he believes that is correct. Councilman Crockett
indicated that he recalled the grade coming down the hill to Fourth Street would create more of
a problem and inquired if he is wrong regarding this matter. Town Manager Sutherland stated
that Councilman Crockett is correct, and it is a solid rock cliff there. He explained that this has
been excavated some, and this was all just a viewing of the property, and the Town has not
surveyed the property, cross-sectioned it, etc., but the Town could certainly do this. Councilman
Crockett indicated that he knows there are certain limitations on the grades for access on roads
where they create problems. He explained that he did not recall what these grades are and if it
is 12 percent, etc. Councilman Crockett reiterated he was under the impression that this grade
exceeded it. Town Manager Sutherland noted that the Virginia Department of Transportation
does not recommend over, and their maximum is, a 10 percent grade for any type of street or
road. He stated the Town has never surveyed the property, and it has just been an eyeball
evaluation. Councilman Crockett indicated it may be worth considering what this grade would be
to pursue this access for the sake of Mr. Beamer’s and others’ comments to ensure that this is
not necessarily an option, or, if it is, if the Town should pursue it further. Mayor Crewe noted that
his recollection is the Town could pursue this access and it could be done, but it would be the
matter of what grading would have to be done to make it fit. He stated the Town would have to
excavate part of the property in order to get the grade down to a usable slope. Mr. Beamer
stated if the property was cut back far enough from Fourth Street, he does not think there is any
question that the Town could get a satisfactory grade, but as Town Manager Sutherland has
stated, there is a considerable amount of rock on the property, but it is a formidable problem.
Mayor Crewe indicated that this will cost money.

Mayor Crewe noted he did not see anyone else on the sign up sheet who requested to address
the Council. He inquired if there are others who wish to address Council during Citizens’ Period.
There being none, he proceeded with the agenda.



RE: OLD BUSINESS
Under Old Business, Town Manager Sutherland reported the following:

1. The Council may have seen this in the newspaper this weekend, but the Town received
notice last week that it is going to be the recipient of a $225,000 grant from the Federal
Emergency Management Agency, which will be matched with $25,000 of local funds that
will be used for the purchase of a fire truck. The Town has sought this grant a number of
times, and, fortunately, the Town will receive these funds. The Town still has another
grant it is hopeful for from FEMA, and this would be to buy a series of air packs for the
firemen, but the Town has not heard regarding this grant application.

2. As the Council knows, AEP had agreed a couple of weeks ago that they would continue
to treat governments as public authorities until June 30, 2007. This was good news
because it protected governments for that period of time under the deregulation. The
State Corporation Commission has now ruled, according to Mr. Dobbins who has been
representing the Town on this matter, that effective immediately, governments, including
the Commonwealth, will be treated as retail customers under the State tariff plan. While
the Town is protected until 2007, fortunately, the worst situation the Town will be in
thereafter is that it will be treated as a retail customer. AEP wanted to treat the
governments as an entire separate class of consumers, and there would have been a
whole separate set of tariffs associated with it. The good news is the worst thing the
Town will be treated as is a retail customer. Mayor Crewe noted the Town will probably
be treated as a retail customer at a higher rate. Town Manager Sutherland advised that
is probably correct.

RE: BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

Vice-Mayor King, reporting for the Budget and Finance Committee, stated that at the last
meeting of Council, the Committee reported that both Committees of the Council were reviewing
the Town’s participation in the state’s Enterprise Zone. She explained that as the Council will
recall, an Enterprise Zone is a specially designated area intended to stimulate overall economic
growth by providing tax incentives and financial incentives to businesses and industries
operating within the district. Vice-Mayor King stated the Committee’s discussion over the past
several weeks has regarded the geographic area that the Town would desire to have
designated as an Enterprise Zone and the incentives that would be offered to qualifying
businesses and industries. She noted that as the Council discussed at the last meeting, the
area within the Town’s corporate limits that could be designated as an Enterprise Zone could
vary in size and configuration, but must have a continuous land connection with Progress Park.
Vice-Mayor King advised that the Council considered a number of alternatives ranging from the
designation of an area as small as 171 acres to the designation of all areas within the corporate
limits east of Nye Road, which consists of approximately 885 acres. She noted that after
reviewing both of these types of arrangements, the Committee is of the opinion that the smaller
tract of approximately 171 acres would be the best approach. Vice-Mayor King explained that in
this situation, the land generally described as being around the new Pepsi facility with an
extension along Lover’s Lane to Progress Park would accommodate the Town’s immediate and
future needs. She stated that under the rules of the program, the land area within the corporate
limits could be expanded, if needed, at some point in the future. Vice-Mayor King advised that
secondly, the Committee has discussed, at some length, the threshold that would be required
for a business or industry to qualify for local incentives. She remarked that the Committee
believes it is reasonable to set the threshold for local incentives as creating, at a minimum, 20
jobs, and constructing, at a minimum, $1 million worth of facilities. Vice-Mayor King advised for
those businesses and industries that would meet this threshold, the Committee is proposing that
the following incentives be offered. She explained that the incentives would include a fifty
percent reduction in fee for a building permit, fast-tracking the building permit application
process to assure a thirty-day turn around after the submittal of plans, and the waiving of water
and sewer connection fees (though the cost of the meter and certain piping would not be
waived.) Vice-Mayor King stated, therefore, it is the recommendation of the Budget and Finance
Committee that the Town participate in the Enterprise Zone Program, and that the Council
designate the geographic area consisting of 171 acres as denoted on the plat prepared by the
Joint Industrial Development Authority, and that the Town provide the local incentives as
outlined above. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by Councilman Jones
that the Town participate in the Enterprise Zone Program; that the Council designate the
geographic area consisting of 171 acres as denoted on the plat prepared by the Joint Industrial
Development Authority; that the Town set the threshold for local incentives as creating, at a
minimum, 20 jobs, and constructing, at a minimum, $1 million worth of facilities; and that the
incentives include a fifty percent reduction in fee for a building permit, fast-tracking the building
permit application process to assure a thirty-day turn around after the submittal of plans, and the



waiving of water and sewer connection fees, though the cost of the meter and certain piping
would not be waived. Mayor Crewe noted that he needs to make sure he understands the
motion, and there are four parts to what he is understanding. He stated that first, the
Committee’s motion is that the Town participate in the Enterprise Zone Program, which means
filing the application; secondly, that the Town uses the geographical area of 171 acres on the
plat the JIDA prepared; thirdly, that the Town impose the threshold of 20 jobs and $1 million
worth of facilities; and, fourthly, that the Town offer three incentives which include the fifty
percent reduction in the fee for the building permit, the fast-tracking of the building permit, and
the water and sewer connection fees to be waived. Mayor Crewe inquired if he understands the
motion correctly. Vice-Mayor King stated that is correct. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any
discussion on the motion to participate in the Enterprise Zone with the three other parts of the
motion. Councilman Crockett requested Mayor Crewe to refresh his memory that it is 20 jobs
and $1 million in facilities. He noted that at some point, he knows the Council agreed on this.
Councilman Crockett inquired if these figures came from the Joint IDA. Mayor Crewe noted the
present Enterprise Zone currently on the books that expires next year is 20 jobs and $2 million
in facilities, and the discussions he knows the Budget and Finance Committee had, and he
thinks the Public Works Committee also had, is if the Town wants to offer this to businesses and
industries that are smaller, this is why these numbers were proposed. Councilman Crockett
stated he knows the Council agreed on these numbers, but his question dealt with if the JIDA
had proposed any of these numbers. Town Manager Sutherland advised that the JIDA did not
propose these numbers and they did not comment on them. Mayor Crewe noted he can share
with the Council that when the Crossroads Regional Industrial Facility Authority met, these
numbers were one of the things they discussed. He stated when Bland County, Wythe County,
and the Town of Wytheville discussed these numbers at the Crossroads Regional Industrial
Facility Authority meeting, the Town of Rural Retreat representatives were not present at the
meeting. He advised he did not know what Wythe County has or has not done, and Bland
County meets next week. Town Manager Sutherland stated that is correct. Councilman Crockett
inquired if the County concurs with these figures or if Town Manager Sutherland knows. Town
Manager Sutherland answered that he did not know if the County concurs with these figures
because the Town did not share these with the County, per se, but County Administrator Dalton
and Board of Supervisors Sharitz heard the numbers at the Crossroads Regional Industrial
Facility Authority meeting held the other day. He noted he thinks the County’s numbers will be
higher for Progress Park. Councilman Crockett indicated that is where he is going with this is if
the County should come up with higher figures, what does this do to the Town and inquired if
the Council will have to revise these figures. Town Manager Sutherland explained that the Town
will not have to revise its figures because all four participating jurisdictions can have different
numbers, different incentive packages, etc. Mayor Crewe noted they did discuss this, and the
County having all of Progress Park and 30 acres being the average lot size, the County would
be looking for bigger industries and bigger businesses than the Town thought they would be
looking for in this 171 acres. He noted he thinks this is the logic behind it. Mayor Crewe
indicated that the Town of Wytheville can have their numbers, Bland County can have a
different set of numbers, Carroll County can have a different set of numbers, and there can be a
different set of numbers for each jurisdiction. Councilman Crockett indicated he is trying to figure
out in his mind how that would impact an industry if two or three industries came in to look at
areas, and one would receive one set of figures, one would receive another set of numbers, and
another would receive yet a third set of figures. He noted it seems like it would be more
appropriate to have similar numbers, and he can appreciate the fact that Progress Park would
be very desirous of larger figures, but this makes him wonder. Mayor Crewe indicated that part
of Mr. Mike Webb’s presentation, and noted he did not think he proposed these numbers but he
thinks they were discussed when he made the presentation, but it will be a four party application
including Carroll County, Wythe County, Bland County, and the Town of Wytheville. He
explained that each subpart will be evaluated on its own merits, and then averaged together
with the other three to make an average for the whole application. Mayor Crewe stated the
needs for the Town of Wytheville have to be tailored to the Enterprise Zone in the Town of
Wytheville. He noted the needs for the County are tailored for what is in the County. He advised
that one of the things was if they were talking to a larger industry, the Town could user larger
numbers, but if the Town wanted smaller industries, there would need to be smaller numbers.
Mayor Crewe explained that the Town would need to articulate why the Town chose its
numbers. He noted the County will have to articulate why they chose their numbers for the
Enterprise Zone, but they are different because of the two different pieces of property in and out
of the Town limits. Town Manager Sutherland explained that he thinks Councilman Crockett will
find this is very similar to what the County will offer for Progress Park, although the threshold will
be higher. He noted the truth of the matter is that this is a little bit of the extra grading because
what the industry really wants are the State tax breaks, and those are common to everyone so
each one will receive the exact same tax break in Progress Park, in Bland County, or Carroll
County, because this number is consistent. Town Manager Sutherland explained that the only
thing that will vary will be the local incentives. Mayor Crewe stated the local incentives are worth
a lot less dollar wise than the State incentives. Councilman Crockett stated that in expressing



his concern, he did not think the Town is going to come up with any numbers that would be
detrimental to the Town acquiring an industry. He noted that 20 jobs and $1 million in facilities
would be extremely desirable, but inquired if it would be a hindrance to some company who
came in and stated they would spend $1 million, but they are only going to create, for example,
15 jobs. Councilman Crockett indicated that possibly this would not be a major concern, but it
seems to him like it could, particularly, if Carroll County had a more liberal figure than the Town
of Wytheville. Mayor Crewe noted that theoretically, it could be of concern, but there are ways to
address this, and the Council could amend it and make a one-time deal with that business, etc.
He stated these numbers are to basically meet the deadline to get the application in to receive
an Enterprise Zone so the Town will have one because the Town is about to lose the Enterprise
Zone it has since it expires next year. Councilman Crockett stated he also understands this part,
and, also, he is concerned about getting the application in as rapidly as possible if the Town is
in a position where they could modify those figures if the issue came up, or could look at
modifying them, and indicated that he thinks this would be a consideration. Town Manager
Sutherland remarked that he also thinks if the Town had an interested industry, the Council is in
a position where it could negotiate individually with that company. Councilman Crockett noted
this means these numbers are not “cast in stone.” Town Manager Sutherland explained that
these numbers are “cast in stone” in terms of what the Council is going to offer, and the
industries would get this by right if the Council adopts this, but it is not to state that the Town
cannot also negotiate with companies with other incentives. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is
any other discussion or comments. There being none, the motion was approved with the
following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline
K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None. A copy of
the Budget and Finance Committee report is attached and made part of these
minutes.(Attachment).

RE: PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT

Councilman Weisiger, reporting for the Public Works Committee, stated the Committee has
continued their work on the creation of a regional water authority that will be formed among
Carroll County, Wythe County, and the Town of Wytheville. He noted that this new authority will
be known as the New River Regional Water Authority. Councilman Weisiger stated the Town
Council will conduct a public hearing on this matter on October 13, while Carroll County and
Wythe County will hold their public hearings on October 8 and October 14, respectively. He
stated that at the October 13 meeting, after receiving public comment, the Council will consider
the adoption of a resolution which creates the New River Regional Water Authority. Councilman
Weisiger explained that this resolution sets forth that the three named jurisdictions find the
creation of an authority beneficial and that the authority is being created under regulations set
forth in state law. He stated the resolution also sets forth the articles of incorporation for the new
authority. Councilman Weisiger explained that initially, there will be seven board members
appointed to govern the authority. He noted the terms of the seven members are staggered to
terminate on June 30 of each year. Councilman Weisiger stated that initially, two members will
be appointed by Wytheville, two by Carroll County, and three by the County of Wythe. He
indicated that the articles provide that each participating jurisdiction will appoint two members to
the authority, and the seventh board member will be appointed by the jurisdiction that uses the
largest share of the new water plant’s capacity. Councilman Weisiger advised that the
jurisdiction with the authority to appoint the seventh member could vary, depending on varying
consumptions by jurisdictions. He noted the articles could provide that the board members shall
be members of the governing body of the participating locality or employees of the participating
locality. Councilman Weisiger stated it is the Committee’s recommendation that the
appointments to be made by the Town Council would be Charles G. Crockett and C. Wayne
Sutherland, Jr. He explained that if the Council concurs, the Committee would move that these
two persons be appointed to the New River Regional Water Authority with Mr. Sutherland’s term
expiring in 2005 and Mr. Crockett’s term expiring in 2006. Mayor Crewe noted he would like to
ask a question by way of a point of order. He noted in thinking about this and the way he sees it,
he does not think the Council can make appointments to a body that does not yet exist. Town
Manager Sutherland stated that is correct. Mayor Crewe indicated that he thinks the Council will
have to wait until October 13 when the public hearing is held, and then the Council can approve
the articles of incorporation and the agreement to participate, and then he thinks the Council
can appoint someone. Town Manager Sutherland advised he thinks the Mayor is correct. He
explained that what the Council is doing is suggesting names that the attorney can use for
document purposes. Mayor Crewe stated he knows the Committees talked about it, and he
does not think they have any problems with the appointments. He stated he thinks it is a little
premature for the Council to approve the motion to appoint someone, but what he thinks the
Council should state is that by consensus, the Council authorizes Town staff to inform Mr.
Webster Day to insert these names in the documents and to proceed on this assumption. Mayor
Crewe reiterated that he does not think the Council can act until they have the public hearing
and does three things which include holding the public hearing, then approving the articles of



incorporation, and then the Council making the appointments to the authority. He noted he is
sorry that Town Attorney Kaase was not able to attend this meeting, but he thinks the Council is
getting ahead of itself because they cannot appoint someone to a board that does not exist.
Councilman Jones noted this warns Councilman Crockett and Town Manager Sutherland that
the appointment is coming. Mayor Crewe advised it also tells Mr. Webster Day which names to
place in the paperwork. Councilman Crockett noted he thinks this is the key to the whole thing
and there have to be names. He noted he has been through this with a couple of other
organizations, and noted they did not go through an appointment process necessarily, but the
names have to be on the paperwork to go through the application process. Councilman
Weisiger inquired if the Committee needs to change the motion. Mayor Crewe stated he will
take the Public Works Committee’s report to be that the Committee is asking for the consensus
of Council unless someone disagrees, and he interprets the consensus of Council to be that
these two appointments would be satisfactory, and that Town staff is authorized to communicate
this to Mr. Day to place these names in the rough draft of the documents that the Council will be
reviewing. He noted unless someone has a problem with this, this is what the Council can do.
Vice-Mayor King indicated that she thinks all of this has been discussed in Committee meetings.
Mayor Crewe stated he heard no objections to these names, and, in fact, the Council is glad
that Councilman Crockett and Town Manager Sutherland are willing to serve in these
capacities. A copy of the Public Works Committee report is attached and made part of these
minutes. (Attachment).

RE: APPOINTMENT — BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is to make a recommendation to the Wythe County
Circuit Court regarding the reappointment of Mr. Paul Stanley to the Board of Zoning Appeals.
He noted that Mr. Stanley’s term expires September 10, and this appointment is made by the
Circuit Court on the Council’'s recommendation. Mayor Crewe noted the Council would request if
someone has an interest in being appointed to this Board to please let the Council know. He
stated unless someone has a motion, he does not think it is necessary for the Council to take
action. Councilman Crockett inquired if Mr. Stanley is eligible for reappointment. Mayor Crewe
noted that it is not stated in the package, but he has been informed that Mr. Stanley can be
reappointed. Councilman Crockett inquired if Mr. Stanley has expressed a willingness to serve
again. Mayor Crewe advised that Town Clerk Hackler has indicated that Mr. Stanley is willing to
serve again. He noted that Mr. Stanley is eligible for reappointment and has indicated a
willingness to serve again. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by
Councilman Weisiger to make a recommendation to the Wythe County Circuit Court to
reappoint Mr. Paul Stanley to the Board of Zoning Appeals. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any
discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting
in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W.
Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None.

RE: APPOINTMENTS — RECREATION COMMISSION

Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is to consider the reappointment of youth members to
the Recreation Commission to fill the expired terms of Mr. Ricky Beamer and Ms. Megan
Romanies. He noted the Council has in their package the request and the recommendation from
the Recreation Commission which is that Mr. Ricky Beamer and Ms. Megan Romanies be
reappointed as the youth members. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by
Councilman Weisiger to reappoint Mr. Ricky Beamer and Ms. Megan Romanies to the
Recreation Commission. Vice-Mayor King advised that both of the youth members have been
excellent on the Recreation Commission. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the
motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there
being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William
B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None.

RE: WYTHE COUNTY JAIL PROPERTY

Mayor Crewe stated the last agenda item is the consideration of the authorization to purchase
the jail property from Wythe County. He noted that up to this point, this has only been a matter
of discussions, and this is the location where the Town’s Recycling Center is located. Mayor
Crewe indicated that if the Town is going to do anything about this property, the Council needs
to go ahead and take action. He advised if the Council is interested, the Town has been told that
the County is willing to sell the property for $50,000. Mayor Crewe noted the first step would be
for someone to make a motion that the Town proceed to purchase the property for the sale price
of $50,000. A motion was made by Councilman Weisiger and seconded by Vice-Mayor King for
the Town to proceed to purchase the Wythe County jail property for $50,000. Councilman Jones
indicated he would like to state if the Council approves the purchase, before Wythe County is
paid the funds that they remove anything they have on the property. He noted there is still one



vehicle on the property, and advised he does not know what is inside the building, but he thinks
that until Wythe County clears out the building and removes all of their belongings from the
property, the Town should not pay them the money. Town Manager Sutherland advised that
County Administrator Cellell Dalton told him that the County would remove their belongings from
the property. He explained that Mr. Dalton also indicated that there are a couple of stainless
steel commercial refrigerators that may be of benefit in the new community center, and the
County is willing to leave those if the Town wants them. Councilman Jones advised that this
would be acceptable. Vice-Mayor King noted that last week, she saw the County moving things
out of the building and putting them on pickup trucks, and advised that this was in the last part
of the week. Mayor Crewe stated they must be hauling their items off of the property. He noted
the motion on the floor is to proceed with the purchase of the Wythe County jail property for
$50,000. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any other discussion on the motion. Councilman
Crockett advised that he has a number of concerns about this purchase. He noted he has
expressed his concerns in Committee meetings and he would like to express his concerns to
the public, also. Councilman Crockett indicated that in reference to a couple of comments that
were made at this meeting dealing with the Visitor's Center that citizens were not necessarily
fully aware of what was going on, he cannot help but wonder how many of the Town’s 8,000
citizens are aware of the fact that the Town is getting ready to purchase what he refers to as the
Town’s “pink elephant” called the old jail and the parking lot. Councilman Crockett noted he
finds it very difficult to believe the Town is doing this without some type of public hearing. He
stated the other Council members will probably not pay much attention to his comments, but it
always makes him feel better when he makes them. Councilman Crockett noted he thinks the
Council should have a public hearing if the Town is spending this kind of money, particularly, in
light of the fact that 8,000 citizens probably do not have the foggiest idea the Council is getting
ready to spend this kind of money, not that it is big in reference to other parts of the Town’s
budget, but it is, certainly, a major expenditure in reference to other projects. He advised that he
looks at other projects the Town has that the Council has stated they could not afford to spend
money on, with one being fixing the parking at the Post Office, which the Town has stated that
there is a $40,000 figure involved, and the Town requested that the Post Office furnish money,
and they have obviously stated they are not going to furnish the money. Councilman Crockett
stated the Council does not have an item in the budget, and someone will probably get killed
there one of these days or there will be a major accident. He indicated that the Town could
avoid that situation by spending $40,000, but, in turn, the Town is spending $50,000 for the old
jail property. Councilman Crockett advised that also widening the south side of East Main Street
between 11" Street and the old cab stand is something that needs to be done before there is a
major accident at this location. He noted the Council cannot afford to do that, but they can afford
to buy the old jail. Councilman Crockett indicated that the Council needs to provide proper traffic
control at the bottom of the street at Bob Evans Restaurant and this intersection. He noted that
he understands the Town has that on the Seven-Year State Highway Program, but knowing the
money provided by the State, he is not sure any of the Council will ever see this happen at the
rate of the State funding projects. Councilman Crockett stated that another item he thinks the
Town should look heavily into completing is Sixth Street between Fulton Street and West Ridge
Road. He explained there are many other projects involved around that the Town needs to
review, but, the Council is going to purchase the jail for $50,000. He indicated that another
concern is the Council has a long list of citizens who have requested curb and gutter in front of
their homes over the last ten years, at least. Councilman Crockett pointed out that most of these
have never been done, and the Town always seems to use the excuse that there is no money
available in the budget, but, now the Council is proposing to spend $50,000 for the old jail and a
parking lot. He advised he wonders how mad these citizens will be when they fully realize that
the Council does not have money for their curb and gutter, but they have $50,000 to spend on a
“pink elephant.” Councilman Crockett noted when the Council gets on down further, they,
obviously, blundered when they placed a recycling center on property that the Town did not
own, and, of course, now, the Town is trying to rectify a bad situation by buying the old jail and
parking lot. He stated another item is there is no useful purpose for the jail, and he thinks it will
cost, and noted this is his figure, approximately $100,000 to renovate the building and make it
useful for any use other than junk storage. Councilman Crockett indicated that it is also
estimated to cost at least $50,000 to demolish the building, which he thinks will have to come up
at some point, and noted he cannot visualize the Town spending $100,000 and utilizing the
building. He advised that at some point, the Town will have to spend probably another $50,000
to demolish the building. Councilman Crockett stated another concern is that the Town owns the
Fulton Home on Fourth Street, which the Town has let deteriorate. He noted the Town cannot
even take care of a home in its own historical district, and now, the proposal on the table is to
spend $50,000 for the old jail and the parking lot. Councilman Crockett advised that he would
ask the question as to where are the Council’s priorities. He noted the Town charges its citizens
to pick up their trash with the Bag It & Tag It system, and the Council is proposing to throw away
$50,000 on a “pink elephant.” Councilman Crockett stated that, again, he would ask where are
the Council’s priorities. He pointed out that the Town cannot pay all of its full-time employees a
living wage of $8.00 per hour, but the Council is proposing to throw away $50,000 on a “pink



elephant.” Councilman Crockett stated that, again, he would ask where are the Council’s
priorities. He noted the pathetic part about this whole proposal is the citizens of Wytheville pay
38 percent of the real estate taxes, and the Town currently owns over one-third of the jail if it is
looked at from this perspective. Councilman Crockett indicated that the Town is paying the
County $50,000 to buy part of what the Town citizens already own as residents of the County.
He noted this is a great deal for the County residents, but inquired about the citizens of
Wytheville. Councilman Crockett stated he cannot help but wonder how many members of this
Council would be willing to invest $50,000 of their own money on this “pink elephant.” He noted
this would be right up there with buying the Titanic after it hit the iceberg. Councilman Crockett
stated that he knows he would not make this type of investment, and he does not think that any
other members of this Council would either. He inquired if the Council should ask its citizens to
make an investment that they are not willing to make with their own money. Councilman
Crockett stated he did not think so, and advised that he cannot help but wonder where the
Council is going with this, and he would request, again, that the Council hold a public hearing as
opposed to voting on this purchase at this meeting. Councilman Crockett indicated that he
thinks the Town citizens are unaware of this matter. Mayor Crewe stated that at least two points
Councilman Crockett made he thinks need to be addressed. He indicated that this has been
discussed in Committee meetings, and the other Council members know how he feels, and he
thinks Councilman Crockett knows how he feels. Mayor Crewe noted that when Councilman
Crockett keeps characterizing this as a “pink elephant” in the Town buying the jail, this is really
disingenuous. He remarked that the Town is not just purchasing the jail, but the Town is buying,
as Councilman Crockett has indicated in other remarks, the parking lot, and the recycling
center. Mayor Crewe explained that this property is another part of, and adjacent to, Withers
Park, and it has more uses than Councilman Crockett is alluding to. He noted the statement
about already owning one-third of the jail is just plain legally incorrect. Mayor Crewe advised
that it is not titled to the Town, and the Town does not own it. He noted he understands the
analogy that Councilman Crockett is drawing, but, legally, it is faulty, and the Town does not
own one-third of the jail, but the County owns it. Mayor Crewe stated he thought those two
comments needed to be addressed. He inquired if there is any other discussion on the motion.
Councilman Jones stated that Councilman Crockett had some points that he does not disagree
with, and Councilman Crockett got a lot of mileage out of some of his issues that he talks about
every year. He noted that he thinks, personally, he would not want the Town to spend the
money, even though he agrees, on the traffic problem at the Post office, because it is not the
Town’s problem as much as it is the Post Office’s problem, and if they do not have the money,
he inquired as to why the Town should pay for something that belongs to the quasi Federal
government. Councilman Jones noted he agrees with Councilman Crockett on 6" and Fulton
Streets. He indicated that he wanted to do that a long time ago, and advised that he is not
opposed to that, and he thinks this would help with some of the traffic on Fourth Street.
Councilman Jones advised that it does pose some problems making that road more accessible
going through residential areas. He noted the thing about curb and gutter is the Council has had
money in the budget every year, at least $50,000, to spend, and why it has not been done, he
does not know. Councilman Jones indicated that he thinks the Council also recognizes, and
noted it is his understanding, that some of the curb and gutter that is requested will create
problems with people down the hill, so to speak, from where the Town places curb and gutter
because the water will flow heavier. He stated he thinks the Council sees some of this over in
the Crockett Addition where the Town placed curb and gutter, and, of course, where there used
to not be curb and gutter, the land would absorb more of the water and there would not be the
volume which ends up in the bottom and then flows down toward the Town creek because that
is where water is going to go. Councilman Jones noted that these are some of his comments,
and noted he understands, and he is not 100 percent in agreement, but he also recognizes that
if the Town is going to purchase the jail, it is something that has totally not been in the
newspaper. He stated he knows it was in the Wytheville Enterprise one time when they talked
about the County taking the bids. Councilman Jones stated that it seems to him that at some
point, the article discussed the Town’s possible interest in it. He noted this has not been
anything the Council has been discussing as far as in secret sessions or anything of that nature.
Vice-Mayor King noted that another thing would be that the Town would be buying the stands,
also. She noted the stands were full on the Fourth of July night when the festivities were held in
Withers Park. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any further discussion on the motion.
Councilman Crockett stated he still thinks it is a matter of dealing with priorities, and noted he
does not think the Council is properly dealing with priorities. He noted he believes it is correct
that there is a list that takes the Town to 2006-2008 on the request for curb and gutter.
Councilman Crockett indicated that Councilman Jones is correct that there are several requests
the Council has reviewed that were not practical to do for various reasons, but there are a
number of the requests the Town could provide curb and gutter for without any problems and
not create problems, and the Town has not done those. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any
other discussion on the motion. He noted he did not want to cut off the debate. There being no
further discussion, the motion was approved with the following voting results: For: Trenton G.



Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger. Against: Charles G.
Crockett.
RE: TRAFFIC LIGHTS

Councilman Jones noted when he was running this morning at 5:00 a.m., the traffic lights at
Main and Monroe Streets and 11" Street are still basically staying green on 11" Street and not
on Main and Monroe Streets. He noted he still thinks the traffic lights are not working properly.
Mayor Crewe noted that he called Mr. Tommy Seagle today and reported that there were at
least two traffic lights he saw over the weekend that were burned out, and one was at Fourth
and Main Streets. Councilman Weisiger noted it seems to him that the traffic light at Fourth and
Pine Streets is staying green on Pine Street all of the time. Councilman Jones indicated that it
stays green quite awhile, but it does change. Mayor Crewe advised that the light is off position
on Fourth Street. Councilman Jones indicated that what is happening is that when a person is
traveling on 11" Street, they are getting the priority versus the traffic on Main Street. He
explained that as soon as the traffic on Main Street clears, it automatically changes back to 11"
Street. Councilman Jones advised that he did not know if the sensor is bad, but it should be the
reverse of this. Town Manager Sutherland noted that 11" Street should not be the default
position.

RE: CROSSROADS REGIONAL INDUSTRIAL FACILITY AUTHORITY PROJECT

Mayor Crewe advised that for informational purposes, and noted the Council will see this in their
Committee meetings depending on when they meet, but it appears that the new Crossroads
Regional Industrial Facility Authority project that they were discussing, and noted the County
has to take some similar actions, but it looks like the price will be $5.00 per share, and it will be
offered in 8,000 share increments. He noted the Town’s contribution would be $40,000.

RE: ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any further business to be discussed. There being none, a
motion was duly made, seconded, and carried to adjourn the meeting (8:10 p.m.).

Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Mayor

Sharon P. Hackler, CMC, Clerk of Council

G:\COUNCIL\Minutes\2003\Council Minutes 090803.doc



